
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, May 17, 2022 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Cynthia Wallace 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

5. Special Presentation - Boys Basketball All Star Team 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, to rezone the following: (staff-P&D) 

a. 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] 

b. 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] 

7. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone the following: (staff-P&D) 

a. 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 4] 

b. 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4] 

c. 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 4] 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
8. Public Comments 

9. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC) 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional Commission for 

Gateway Aesthetic Overlay assistance (BW) 

11. Awarding of Solicitation 22-35001-001 Fire Station & EMS Facility (staff-CM & Fire) 

12. Surplus of County Vehicle (staff-Fire) 

13. Authorization to establish a Capital Projects Fund (staff-Finance) 

14. Approval of 2022 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

16. County Attorney Report 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Executive Session 
18. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real Estate 

19. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of the meeting 

20. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

 

Closing 
21. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, to rezone the following: (staff-P&D)

a. 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]

b. 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]

2



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, May 5, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Board of Commissioners 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 5/5/2022 

 

Requests 

5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2. [Map 097, Part 

of Parcel 060, District 1]. * The applicant is requesting to rezone 19.45 acres to develop a new mini-warehouse and outdoor parking storage, 

along with several commercial retail shops. The proposed development will focus heavily on mini-warehouses and storage. The applicant is 

also proposing to rezone 20.8 acres to RM-3 to develop 40 units and leave approximately 10 acres of open space.  

 

As stated in the traffic study, Harmony Road is a two-lane road with multiple driveways between the project and Hwy 44. A 24-hour bi-

directional traffic volume count collected March 2, 2022, indicated that most of the left-turn traffic into the development would be from the 

westbound traffic off of Harmony Road. The supplied two-way traffic counts east of the site near Hwy 44 intersection is 3,278 average daily 

traffic. Based on this information, Harmony Road with its multiple access points, may currently be operating near its capacity at peak hours. 

The total projected traffic for the Harmony 40, LLC development is 5,576 average trips per day, with 93 entering and 106 exiting during AM 

peak hour, 142 entering and 132 exiting during the PM hours. The study found that adding 71 left turns during peak hours without a left-turn 

lane would significantly impact the traffic on Harmony Road.  

 

The study shows that Harmony 40, LLC, project would be considered primarily as a destination use and likely will have no passer by 

consideration. However, the commercial tracts on the front would not be a primary destination and would have a higher percentage of passer 

by traffic utilization, and the estimated passer by traffic will be at 35% of the total traffic impact on the outside of the roadway. Therefore, the 

study recommends that the development incorporates a deceleration lane and left turn lanes into the development at all entrances to minimize 

the impact on the operation of Harmony Road.  

 

As stated in Sec. 66-106(a) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, the C-2 zoning allows mini-warehouses, outdoor parking storage, and 

general commercial parcels. The surrounding parcels include undeveloped AG, R-1R Single Family Lots, C-1, and C-2 Commercial use. 

Therefore, the proposed development is consistent with the existing commercial 1 & 2 developments located on Harmony Road. This property 

is directly adjacent to a dwelling unit and if approved, the staff recommends that a 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer be established along 

3



the property line adjacent to map 097 parcel 061 and a 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer be established along the property lines adjacent to 

map 097 parcel 033 and map 097 parcel 033001. The developer should also install a deceleration lane and left-turn lane at all entrances of the 

development as recommended in their traffic study. By implementing the recommended conditions, the proposed project should have minimal 

impact on the adjacent properties, roads, and nearby intersections. 

  

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, 

District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to 

accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be 

completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 061. 

3. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 033.  

4. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the proposed 20.80-acre RM-3 parcel. 

5. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of 

an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the 

planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of 

invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for denial to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-

2. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]. 

 

 

4



 
5



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, May 5, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Board of Commissioners 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 5/5/2022 

 

Requests 

6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3. [Map 097, 

Part of Parcel 060, District 1]. * The applicant is requesting to rezone 20.80 acres to develop 40 units with a residential density of 2+/- units 

per acre and leave approximately 10 acres of open space. The proposed lots will range from 0.16 acres to 0.22 acres. As shown in the concept 

plan, the proposed setbacks will be 30 feet from the front, 20 feet from the rear, and 10 feet from the left and right-side property lines. The 

proposed lots will be accessed via an interior road that will connect to Harmony Road. The applicants are also proposing to rezone 19.45 acres 

to C-2 to develop a new mini-warehouse and outdoor parking storage, along with several commercial retail shops.  

 

As stated in the traffic study, Harmony Road is a two-lane road with multiple driveways between the project and Hwy 44. A 24-hour bi-

directional traffic volume count collected March 2, 2022, indicated that most of the left-turn traffic into the development would be from the 

westbound traffic off of Harmony Road. The supplied two-way traffic counts east of the site near Hwy 44 intersection is 3,278 average daily 

traffic. Based on this information, Harmony Road with its multiple access points, may currently be operating near its capacity at peak hours. 

The total projected traffic for the Harmony 40, LLC development is 5,576 average trips per day, with 93 entering and 106 exiting during AM 

peak hour, 142 entering and 132 exiting during the PM hours. The study found that adding 71 left turns during peak hours without a left-turn 

lane would significantly impact the traffic on Harmony Road.  

 

The study shows that Harmony 40, LLC, project would be considered primarily as a destination use and likely will have no passer by 

consideration. However, the commercial tracts on the front would not be a primary destination and would have a higher percentage of passer 

by traffic utilization, and the estimated passer by traffic will be at 35% of the total traffic impact on the outside of the roadway. Therefore, the 

study recommends that the development incorporates a deceleration lane and left turn lanes into the development at all entrances to minimize 

the impact on the operation of Harmony Road. 

 

 As stated in Sec. 66-96(a) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, the RM-3 zoning allows the development of sing family and 

multifamily dwellings. The surrounding parcels include AG, R-1R Single Family Lots, RM-1 Multifamily lots, C-1, and C-2 Commercial use. 

6



Therefore, the proposed development is consistent with the existing residential use located on Farrier’s Lane and the Future Land Use Plan, 

which projects this parcel as residential use. This property is directly adjacent to two AG zoned parcels and if approved, staff recommends that 

a 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer be established along the property lines adjacent to map 097 parcel 033 and map 097 parcel 033001. 

Staff also recommends that a 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer be established along the property lines that abut the R-1R Single Family 

lots identified as Map 097 Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 056009. The developer should also install a deceleration lane and left-turn 

lane at all entrances of the development as recommended in their traffic study. By implementing the recommended conditions, the proposed 

project should have minimal impact on the adjacent properties, roads, and nearby intersections.  

 

Staff recommendations is for approval to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, 

District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to 

accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be 

completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R Single Family lots identified as Map 097 

Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 056009. 

4. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of 

an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the 

planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of 

invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to 

RM-3. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to 

accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be 

completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R Single Family lots identified as Map 097 

Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 056009. 

This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an 

accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and 

development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning 

action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone the following: (staff-P&D)

a. 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 4]

b. 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4]

c. 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 4]

41



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, May 5, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Board of Commissioners 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 5/5/2022 

 

Requests 

7. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. * The 

applicant is requesting to rezone this parcel along with two adjacent parcels for a total of 39.61 acres from R-1 to AG. If approved, the 

applicant would like to keep horses, goats, chickens, a hay field to feed the animals, and a small pond on the parcels. The pond will 

primarily be used to irrigate the hay field, provide water for the animals, and allow the applicant to swim and fish. The applicant began 

constructing the 3.5-acre pond in August of 2021 and was told that the property was not properly zoned for a pond.  

 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1 and is centrally located within a residential community. In addition, the proposed parcels abut 

or are adjacent to nine R-2 single-family residences, which the proposed rezoning will directly impact. There are also two additional R-2 

single-family residences across the road on Emory Drive. Although the Comprehensive Future Land Use map indicates the future land of 

the three parcels as agriculture, in this instance, the uses allowed in AG would have an adverse effect on the residents of the surrounding 

residential community. Please see Sec. 66-72. - Uses allowed for the list of allowed uses in AG District. Section 66-165 of the Code of 

Ordinances establishes several standards to be considered to determine the balance between an individual’s unrestricted right to the use of 

his or her property and public’s right to the protection of its health, safety, morality, or general welfare of the community. With respect to 

the present application, staff makes the following findings: 1) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances and staff has 

received comments from owners of adjacent and nearby properties that the use, value, and usability of their property has been negatively 

impacted by the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances, that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has worked as a 

detriment to the public health and safety, and that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has caused soil sediment pollution; 

2) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances, and, as such, the property cannot be used as currently zoned; and 3) the 

proposed use is not supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the comprehensive plan or reflected in the existing zoning 

on the property or surrounding properties. 

 

42

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_AGDI_S66-72USAL


Therefore, it is the opinion of the staff that rezoning this property from R-1 to AG will have a negative impact on this residential 

neighborhood. Moreover, this rezoning request does not promote a practical balance between public health, safety, and reasonable use of 

the subject property.  

 

 

Staff recommendations is for denial to rezone 11.604 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. * 

 

 

 

 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to 

AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. 

 

43



 
44



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, May 5, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Board of Commissioners 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 5/5/2022 

 

Requests 

8. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 3]. * The 

applicant is requesting to rezone this parcel along with two adjacent parcels for a total of 39.61 acres from R-1 to AG. If approved, the 

applicant would like to keep horses, goats, chickens, a hay field to feed the animals, and a small pond on the parcels. The pond will 

primarily be used to irrigate the hay field, provide water for the animals, and allow the applicant to swim and fish. The applicant began 

constructing the 3.5-acre pond in August of 2021 and was told that the property was not properly zoned for a pond.  

 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1 and is centrally located within a residential community. In addition, the proposed parcels abut 

or are adjacent to nine R-2 single-family residences, which the proposed rezoning will directly impact. There are also two additional R-2 

single-family residences across the road on Emory Drive. Although the Comprehensive Future Land Use map indicates the future land of 

the three parcels as agriculture, in this instance, the uses allowed in AG would have an adverse effect on the residents of the surrounding 

residential community. Please see Sec. 66-72. - Uses allowed for the list of allowed uses in AG District. Section 66-165 of the Code of 

Ordinances establishes several standards to be considered to determine the balance between an individual’s unrestricted right to the use of 

his or her property and public’s right to the protection of its health, safety, morality, or general welfare of the community. With respect to 

the present application, staff makes the following findings: 1) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances and staff has 

received comments from owners of adjacent and nearby properties that the use, value, and usability of their property has been negatively 

impacted by the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances, that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has worked as a 

detriment to the public health and safety, and that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has caused soil sediment pollution; 

2) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances, and, as such, the property cannot be used as currently zoned; and 3) the 

proposed use is not supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the comprehensive plan or reflected in the existing zoning 

on the property or surrounding properties. 

 

45

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_AGDI_S66-72USAL


Therefore, it is the opinion of the staff that rezoning this property from R-1 to AG will have a negative impact on this residential 

neighborhood. Moreover, this rezoning request does not promote a practical balance between public health, safety, and reasonable use of 

the subject property.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 11.030 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 

3]. * 

 

 

 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 11.030 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory 

Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4]. * 

 

46



 
47



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, May 5, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Board of Commissioners 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 5/5/2022 

 

Requests 

9. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 3]. * The 

applicant is requesting to rezone this parcel along with two adjacent parcels for a total of 39.61 acres from R-1 to AG. If approved, the 

applicant would like to keep horses, goats, chickens, a hay field to feed the animals, and a small pond on the parcels. The pond will 

primarily be used to irrigate the hay field, provide water for the animals, and allow the applicant to swim and fish. The applicant began 

constructing the 3.5-acre pond in August of 2021 and was told that the property was not properly zoned for a pond.  

 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1 and is centrally located within a residential community. In addition, the proposed parcels abut 

or are adjacent to nine R-2 single-family residences, which the proposed rezoning will directly impact. There are also two additional R-2 

single-family residences across the road on Emory Drive. Although the Comprehensive Future Land Use map indicates the future land of 

the three parcels as agriculture, in this instance, the uses allowed in AG would have an adverse effect on the residents of the surrounding 

residential community. Please see Sec. 66-72. - Uses allowed for the list of allowed uses in AG District. Section 66-165 of the Code of 

Ordinances establishes several standards to be considered to determine the balance between an individual’s unrestricted right to the use of 

his or her property and public’s right to the protection of its health, safety, morality, or general welfare of the community. With respect to 

the present application, staff makes the following findings: 1) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances and staff has 

received comments from owners of adjacent and nearby properties that the use, value, and usability of their property has been negatively 

impacted by the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances, that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has worked as a 

detriment to the public health and safety, and that the pond built in violation of the zoning ordinances has caused soil sediment pollution; 

2) the applicant is currently in violation of the zoning ordinances, and, as such, the property cannot be used as currently zoned; and 3) the 

proposed use is not supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the comprehensive plan or reflected in the existing zoning 

on the property or surrounding properties. 

 

48

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_AGDI_S66-72USAL


Therefore, it is the opinion of the staff that rezoning this property from R-1 to AG will have a negative impact on this residential 

neighborhood. Moreover, this rezoning request does not promote a practical balance between public health, safety, and reasonable use of 

the subject property.  

 

 

 

 

Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 15.696 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 

3]. 

 

 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 15.696 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory 

Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 3]. * 
 

49



 
 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



Adam Schulze
Rezoning Request 

111 001045 001
111 001045 002
111 001045 003

R-1 to AG

83



84



¬«212

¬«44

¬«16

¬«16

¬«24

¬«16

¬«44

¬«24

¬«212

¬«44

¬«44

¬«16

¬«44

¬«16

¬«24

¬«212

¬«142

¬«16

¬«24

£¤441

£¤441B

£¤129

£¤441

£¤129

£¤129

£¤441

Putnam County, GA:
Current Land Use µ

0 63
Miles

Legend
Municipal Boundaries

Agriculture/Forestry

Commercial

Industrial

Park/Recreation/Conservation

Public/institutional

Residential

Transportation/Communication/Utilities

Undeveloped/Vacant
Putnam County and the City of Eatonton 24

Exhibit B
85



86



¬«212

¬«44

¬«16

¬«16

¬«24

¬«16

¬«44

¬«24

¬«212

¬«44

¬«44

¬«16

¬«44

¬«16

¬«24

¬«212

¬«142

¬«16

¬«24

£¤441

£¤441B

£¤129

£¤441

£¤129

£¤129

£¤441

Putnam County, GA:
Future Land Use µ

0 63
Miles

Legend
Municipal Boundaries

County

Agriculture/Forestry

Commercial

Industrial

Mixed Use

Park/Recreation/Conservation

Public/institutional

Residential

Transportation/Communication/Utilities

Undeveloped/Vacant
Putnam County and the City of Eatonton 26

87



88



Examples of AG parcels surrounded by residential parcels along Putnam County lakefront 89



Examples of AG parcels surrounded by residential parcels along Putnam County lakefront

90



Examples of AG parcels surrounded by residential parcels along Putnam County lakefront
91



Adam Schulze
Rezoning Request 

111 001045 001
111 001045 002
111 001045 003

R-1 to AG

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



File Attachments for Item:

9. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC)

106



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 5  

May 6, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, May 6, 2022 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, May 6, 2022 at approximately 9:00 

AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, 

Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

107



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 5  

May 6, 2022   

 

5. Special Presentation - Larry Kaiser 

Chairman Webster shared some words of appreciation for Mr. Larry Kaiser and read a 

proclamation making him an honorary Putnam County citizen.  The Commissioners also 

presented him with a plaque thanking him for his outstanding contributions to Putnam County. 

(Copy of proclamation made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

Mr. Duane Gentes commented on the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting and the item 

regarding the pond built by Adam Schulze.  He stated the meeting did not go well with the 

Chairman giving personal opinions and the times to speak for proponents and opponents was not 

fair; he wanted to bring this to the commissioner's attention. 

 

Ms. Marianne Bruhn Popik also commented on the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting and 

the item regarding the pond built by Adam Schulze.  She stated that written statements were 

submitted to P&Z.  She also invited commissioners to come look at the cove. 

 

Dr. Steve Hersey submitted a handout concerning a proposal for Senior Tax Relief involving an 

increase in the homestead exemption for seniors over 70 years old or older and have qualified for 

F1 freeze exemption. 

(Copy of handout made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 19, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - April 19, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG-GSIWCF Employee Safety Grant Application 

(staff-HR) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of application made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 5  

May 6, 2022   

 

8. Approval of Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that insurance claims have been trending up and down and 

the renewal was initially an increase of 15% but the broker got it down to 9%.  He introduced 

Johnathan Shaw from NFP (our broker) to fully explain. 

 

Mr. Johnathan Shaw explained the renewal process, gave his recommendation, and answered 

questions. 

 

Motion to renew employee insurance with the following: Anthem BCBS OAP12 

5000/30%/7900C Low Plan and OAP5 5000/0%/7900 AE High Plan, MetLife Dental, 

Anthem Vision, OneAmerica Life, OneAmerica Short Term Disability, County provided 

Long Term Disability coverage for all employees, and the County Paid Brella benefits 

program with Admin America as HRA Administrator and Aflac and Texas Life as other 

benefit carriers and maintain current employee contribution rates for the insurance plans. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

9. Awarding of Solicitation 22-42001-001 Pea Ridge Road Resurfacing (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that the low bidder for the Pea Ridge Road resurfacing 

project was Garrett Paving Company in the amount of $2,059,714.38. 

Motion to award Solicitation 22-42001-001 Pea Ridge Road Resurfacing to Garrett Paving 

Company in the amount of $2,059,714.38. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

Reports/Announcements 
10. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 Thanks for all who attended the Oconee Springs Park event center opening.  It was a 

great success.  Lonnie & Susan and Renfroe Construction did a great job getting it ready. 

 Bids were received and opened for the new Fire Station & EMS Facility.  That item will 

be on the next agenda. 

 Invited EMS Director Brad Murphey to provide an update on the call volume for 

EMS.  Director Murphey explained that they are super busy with lots of transfers and 

only have three crews.  They set a new daily record of 22 calls (normal used to be 8-10 

calls per day).  They even had to turn down a mutual aid request and two transports could 

not be done until the next morning.  January set a new monthly record at 311 calls.  He 

also advised that they will be losing one employee soon and that part time help is very 

hard to find.  He thanked all public safety employees for all the hard work they do 

everyday.  County Manager Van Haute advised that EMS growth is coming at a record 

pace, and they are trying to develop strategies to cover this. 

 Reminded everyone to please be safe on the lakes; there have been too many drownings 

so far this year. 

 

11. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

109



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 5  

May 6, 2022   

 

12. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: absent 

 

Commissioner Sharp: thanks for the ribbon cutting at OSP; it was a nice turn out and the facility 

is incredible.  He encouraged everyone to go visit. 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: reminded all commissioners to turn in all expenses from the ACCG Training 

Conference. 

 

Executive Session 
13. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 10:07 a.m. 

 

 

14. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 10:37 a.m. 

 

 

15. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Attorney Nelson advised that one matter was discussed with no action taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 5  

May 6, 2022   

 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:38 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

111



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the May 6, 2022 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

112

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2022 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Kamlesh 

Dansinghani 
Food Mart 

271 Scuffleboro 

Road 

Retail Package Sale of Malt 

Beverages and/or Wine 

 
 

113

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission for Gateway Aesthetic Overlay assistance (BW)

114



115



116



 

 

May 17, 2022 
 
 
 
Ms. Laura Mathis 
Executive Director 
Middle Georgia Regional Commission 
175 Emery Highway, Suite C 
Macon, GA 31217 
 
Dear Ms. Mathis: 
 
Putnam County requests technical assistance for a Gateway Aesthetic Overlay.  Please contact 

myself or Paul Van Haute, County Manager, regarding this application. 

 
Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Billy Webster, Chairman 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

117



File Attachments for Item:

11. Awarding of Solicitation 22-35001-001 Fire Station & EMS Facility (staff-CM & Fire)

118



119



File Attachments for Item:

12. Surplus of County Vehicle (staff-Fire)

120



 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

Agenda Item Request Form  

 

 

DATE OF MEETING REQUESTED: __________________________________________________________  

 

REQUEST BY: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA ITEM: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  

□   Presentation   □   Discussion   □   Action* 

 

□   Other (Please Specify) __________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

*ACTION REQUESTED: ____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED: □   Yes   □   No 

 

BUDGET/FUNDING INFORMATION: _______________________________________________________ 

 

FACTS AND/OR ISSUES: ___________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Thomas C. McClain

May 17, 2022

Surplus of County Vehicle
2010 F550 EONE Medium Duty Rescue Truck - Asset #0331

✔

Approval to surplus vehicle 

✔

Unused apparatus. No longer fits response model.

121

lbarb_000
Received



File Attachments for Item:

13. Authorization to establish a Capital Projects Fund (staff-Finance)

122



 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

Agenda Item Request Form  

 

 

DATE OF MEETING REQUESTED: __________________________________________________________  

 

REQUEST BY: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA ITEM: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  

□   Presentation   □   Discussion   □   Action* 

 

□   Other (Please Specify) __________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

*ACTION REQUESTED: ____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED: □   Yes   □   No 

 

BUDGET/FUNDING INFORMATION: _______________________________________________________ 

 

FACTS AND/OR ISSUES: ___________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Linda Cook

Tuesday, May 17, 2022

Authorize creation of Capital Projects Fund

✔

Approval of creation of capital projects
fund

✔

Creation of a capital projects fund would set aside

Proposed budget is included in 2022 Budget Amendment #1

the funds to build the new fire/ems building. The fund would also help

with setting aside funds for future capital projects by budgeting
a transfer from the General Fund to this fund each year.

123



File Attachments for Item:

14. Approval of 2022 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance)

124



 2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1

Fund/Department/Account

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

General Fund Revenues:

Taxes: 741,450 

Real Property Tax 225,000 

Public Utility - Current Year Tax 36,450 

Title Ad Valorem Tax 180,000 

Local Option Sales Tax 300,000 

License & Permits: 5,000 

Building Permit-City 5,000 

Intergovernmental: 90,710 

Grant-State (First Responder Grant) 90,710 

Interest & Miscellaneous: 297,812 

Interest Earned 25,000 

Reimb - Damaged Property 92,812 

Miscellaneous Revenue 60,000 

Revenue-Sale of Assets 120,000 

Transfer From Other Funds 1,608,524 

Appropriation from Fund Balance 5,085,243 

            Total General Fund Revenue Adjustment 7,828,739

General Fund Expenditures:

General Administration 7,000,000

Clerk of Superior Court & Image Account 209,872

Sheriff and Jail Operations 40,000

Fire Stations & Rescue 50,000

Ambulance Service 15,000

Public Works 322,000

Health Department 1,500

Indigent Burial 600

Public Transit System 20,000

Putnam Development Authority 400

Edgewater Event Center 169,367

            Total General Fund Expenditure Adjustment 7,828,739

1 of 2

125



 2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1

Fund/Department/Account

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

Special Service District Revenues:

Taxes: 11,000 

Real Property Tax 5,000 

Intangible Tax 6,000 

License & Permits: 48,500

Alcoholic Beverage License 3,500

Building Permit - County 40,000

EPD Permits 5,000

Fines 600

Donations 200

Other Financing Sources: 680,355

Revenue From Fund Balance 680,355

           Total Special Service District Revenue Adjustment 740,655

Special Service District Expenditures:

Recyclables Collections 556,410

Planning & Development 202,786

           Total Special Service District Expenditures Adjustment 759,196

Juvenile Services Fund - Revenues 4,000

Hotel Motel Tax Fund - Revenues 334,367

Hotel Motel Tax Fund - Expenditures 334,367

LMIG Fund - Revenues 1,366,530

LMIG Fund - Expenditures 1,366,530

Capital Projects Fund - Revenues 7,000,000

Capital Projects Fund - Expenditures 7,000,000

Juvenile Prosecutor Fund - Expenditures 10,500

2 of 2

126


	Top
	Item #6.	2022-05-17 BOC Rezoning-McAllister-Trinkle
	Trinklea SR
	Trinkleb SR
	Trinkle 5-5-22 Map_Redacted
	Trinkle Rezoning Application
	Trinkle 097060LV
	Trinkle Future Land Use 097060

	Item #7.	2022-05-17 BOC Rezoning-Schulze
	Schulzea SR
	Schulzeb SR
	Schulzec SR
	Schulze 5-5-22 Map_Redacted
	Schulze Rezoning Application
	Schulze1 111001045001LV
	Schulze2 111001045002LV
	Schulze3 111001045003LV
	Schulze1 Future Land Use 111001045001
	Schulze2 Future Land Use 111001045002
	Schulze3 Future Land Use 111001045003
	Schulze1 rezoning presentation
	Schulze1 Signed Letters

	Item #9.	2022-05-17 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 05-06-2022 BOC Minutes
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item Template
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses

	Item #10.	2022-05-17 BOC Overlay
	Gateway Aesthetic Overlay
	2022-05-17 Laura Mathis MGRC-TA letter for Gateway Aesthetic Overlay

	Item #11.	2022-05-17 BOC Fire Station Bid
	22-35001-001 Bid Tab Sheet signed

	Item #12.	2022-05-17 BOC Fire Surplus
	Adgenda Request 2010 F550 rescue truck 05052022

	Item #13.	2022-05-17 BOC Capital Projects
	Capital Projects Fund

	Item #14.	2022-05-17 BOC Budget Amendment
	2022 Budget Amendment #1 Revised

	Bottom

